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and Center Burying
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Information taken from Town of Winchester Grand List dated October 1, 1976.

Assessor's Address of Property 
Lot No.

East of Winsted Green, north to south

Name and Address of 
Property Owner

Historical 
Signif. to the 
District

Block 23 106 No. Main St. 
Lot 1

Block 80 
Lot 1

Lot 1A

Lot 2

Lot 3

Lot 4

Lot 5

Lot 6

Lot 7

98 No. Main St.

180 Holabird &
Park Place
(behind 98 No. Main St.)

74 Park Place

 Louise R. Carpenter, est. a Yes 
c/o Althea L. Hennequin, ex. 
Box 43, Goshen, CT 06756 
George J. Green 
47 Cherry S't. .' 
Winsted, CT 06098

Sun Oil Company, 1608 Walnut St., No 
Philadelphia, PA

Stavnitzky Motors, Inc., 19 No 
Oakdale Ave., Winsted, CT

Winsted Hebrew Sick Benefit Society No~ 
74 Park Place, Winsted, CT

56 Park Place

46 Park Place

40 Park Place

32 Park Place

John P. Wilusz, 292 Church St., 
Torrington'T, CT 06790

Albertine Goulet, 56 Park Place, 
Winsted, CT 06098

Laura C. and Salvo J. English, 
46 Park Place, Winsted, CT

Belinda Holmes, 40 Park Place, 
Winsted, CT

J. Philippe & Jeanette B. Goulet, 
32 Park Place, Winsted, CT

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Assessor's Address of Property 
Lot No.

20 Park Place and 
Albert School

Name and Address of 
Property Owner

State of Connecticut, Dept, 
of Public Works

Historical 
Signif. to the 
District

Yes

Block 11 
Lot 1 Park Winsted Green 

Town of Winchester
Yes

West Side of Winsted Green south to north (Park Place West, North Main St. and 
Park Place are the same street)

Block 12 
Lot 18

Lot 20

Lot 20

Lot 21

Lot 22

Lot 23

13-17 Park Place West

21 No. Main St. 
(Park Place West)

23 No. Main St.

37 Park Place

45 Park Place

53 No. Main St.

Therese L. Mackstut-is
Joseph J. Bonyai
58-60 Main St., Winsted

Yes

Ethel P. Rosansky, 238 Holabird 'No 
Ave., Winsted, CT

Ethel P. Rosansky, 238 Holabird No 
Ave., Winsted, CT

Edna J. Nichols, 37 Park 
Place West, Winsted, CT

Herbert Humphries
M. Loretta Humphries
45 Park Place, Winsted, CT

Crosby S. Peck 
125 La Salle Road 
West Hartford, C.T

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Assessor's Address of Property 
Lot No.

Name and Address of 
Property Owner

Historical 
Signif. to the 
District

Lot 7 Cemetery 

Lot 4 Cemetery

Lot 24 75 No. Main St. 
and 25

Block 18
Lot':7" 79 Park Place

Lot 6 95 No. Main St.

Block 17
Lot 8 101 No. Main St.

Main Street, north side, west east

Block 12
Lot 17 70-74 Main St.

Lot 18 64-68 Main" St.

Lot 19 62 Main St.

Lot 19 58-60 Main St.

Town of Winchester 

Town of Winchester

Helen Blodgett
75 No. Main St., Winsted

N. Gary Jamieson
Joan Miller, 79 Park Place, Winsted

First Congregational Church, Inc. 
95 No. Main St., Winsted, CT

Town of Winchester

Yes 

Yes

Yes

John: B. Murray
John^Parisi
John Z. Sweeney
70 Main St., Winsted

George J. Nicholas 
Francis P. Nicholas 
35 Park Place 
Winsted, CT

Therese L. Mackstutis
Joseph J. Bonyai
58-60 Main St., Winsted, CT

Therese L. Mackstutis
Joseph J. Bonyai
58-60 Main St., Winsted, CT

Yes 

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Assessor's Address of Property 
Lot No.

Name and Address of 
Property Owner

Historical 
Signif. to the 
District

Main Street, south side, west to east

Block 70 
Lot 25 95-97 Main St,

Block 74 59 Main St, 
Lot 1

Lot 2A 57 Main St,

Lot 2 49-51 Main St,

Arrow-Hart, Inc. 
AKA Harthind Corp. 
95-97 Main St. 
Winsted, CT

Genevieve Bobinski 
210 Dorothy Drive 
Torrington, CT 06790

Albert J. Cappabianca, est, 
Albert F. Cappabianca 
57 Main St. 
Winsted/ CT

Nicholas Bonadies 
57 Granville Road 
Tolland, MA

Yes

No

No

Yes
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Winsted Green Historic District comprises the Winsted Green, 
also known as East End Park, and the varied neighborhood around this 
park. .Buildings included in the district either actually face the green 
or are so close to it that they contribute visually to enclosing it, 
The Center Burying Ground, a cemetery founded in the late .18th century, is 
part of the district since its entrance at 61 Park Place West is opposite 
the green* The Mad River forms part of the southern border of the dis­ 
trict, while the Still River is its eastern border*

The graen is an attractively landscaped park shaped in plan some­ 
what like an elongated triangle. It is separated from surrounding streets 
by a simple fence with masonry posts and metal rails. Through it pass 
straight paths bordered by grass/ yards with trees. On the axis of the 
north-south path which passes approximately through the center of the
green are an archstectonic wat 
stand, and a late 19th century 
moat picturesque of theses the 
a Union soldier and 
addition although a 
roen earlier. The

a soldier's monument a band­r fountain,
fountain. he path circles around the 
soldier's monument crowned by a figure of 

the three -tier fountain. The bandstand is a recent 
bandstand of very different design had been on the 
existing bandstand, a raised masonry platform with 

railing, is a too massive design for the small scale park*
There is considerable variety in the density of development in 

thi.3 district. It contains a lot of open space due to the green arid the 
cemetery. In addition, development around most of the green is not 
dense. Most of the 28 principal buildings are free-standing and set­ 
back from the sidewalks in spacious, landscaped yards. However, the 
southwest section of the district has a different character. Here, 
development is dsnser and buildings are attached or closely spaced. 
Th?y do not have yards*, instead^ their facades abut the sidewalk. The 
southwest section contains all the district's 9 structures with commer­ 
cial uses as well as a factory. The rest of the district has a resi­ 
dential character. The only function there not compatible in function 
is a gas station located on the southeast corner of North Main Street 
and Holabird Avenue. In the residential section of the district in 
addition to 10 houses retaining their original functions there are two 
houses ( 101 North Main Street and 20 Park Place East) now used as' 
offices by educational groups. Also located here are the Northwest 
Connecticut Community College ( in the Gilbert School , building) and 
two ecclesiastical structures*

Over half of the principal buildings were erected before 1900. 
Five were built between 1800 and 18^5, five between 18^6- 70, and 
six between 1871- 1899. Six of the twelve 20th century buildings were 
erected before 1930. One of the buildings categorized as a post 1930
structure, ^0 Park Place East, may be a remodeling of the 1816 James
Cleveland House, but it is so altered that it appears to be a 20th 
century colonial revival design. Unfortunately five of the six post 
1930 structures are intrusions incompatible with earlier structures* 
The intrusion ratio Is 6s 28.

Sea Continuation Sheet 2
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Winsted Green Historic District, Winsted, CT.

7. Description
The four Federal Period buildings in the district ( 62 Main 

Street; the Seldon Kinney House, *f5 Park Place West;- 79 North Main 
Street; and 66 Park Place West) ara two-story structures with gable 
ends facing the street. All are pleasingly proportioned vernacular 
designs. Three are frame houses, while 62 jain_ Street, the former 
Rockwell Academy building,- is brick. Unfortunately only the exterior 
of the JCinney House is well preserved and even it has a later porch.

The Gideon Hall, Jr., House at *f9 Main Street is an excellent 
example of an elaborate, provincial manifestation of the Greek Revival 
style. It.is a very dignified- frame structure composed of a central 
block with Doric colonnade flanked by side wings. It is possible that 
the wert wing, while of compatible design, is a later addition since it 
does not appear in 1850's woodcuts showing the house. These woodcuts 
show a nnw missing balustrade on the hipped roof of the main block in 
addition to the existing central cupola. Unfortunately this important 
h)use, now converted to apartments, is not well maintained and recent 
structures crowd it.

The five buildings dating from 18*4-0-- 70 are well-preserved examples 
of picturesque domestic architecture in the romantic tradition popularized 
by A,, J 4 Downing. The irregularly massed frame house at 75 Park Place 
West is a finaGothic Revival design accented by window hoods and exposed 
decorative framing in the gables. Of the three frame Itallanate houses 
( 101 North Main Street, 32 Park Place East, and 20 Park Place East) 
20 Park Place East i-s the most fanciful due to the inventive, furniture- 
like columns of its entrance and porch. The George W. Phelps House at 
53 Bark Place West is an elaborate Stick Style building. Its exterior 
is enlivened by gables, dormers, bracing, verandas, and bpy windows.

The six buildings erected between 1871- 1899 do not have the 
domestic scale of earlier buildings in the district. This group contains 
no houses, but four commercial buildings, one factory, and one school. 
Only the Gilbert School is located outside the more densely developed 
southwest section of the .district. While only one of the earlier build­ 
ings in the district is masonry, half of these late 19th century buildings 
are, including the two largest buildings in the district! the brick 
Strong Manufacturing Company building and the brick with rock-faced stone 
foundation Gilbert School building. These late 19th century buildings 
are representative examples of Rood late Victorian commercial, industrial, 
and institutional architecture. The Baird & Woodruff Block (70- 7^ Main 
Street) gnd the adjacent double^ able deblock at 6*+- 66 Main StrlRrtr
interesting examples Sf^Wo^TeTdifferenT "ar'"cTTr£¥ctural modes popular 
in the 1870's. The Baird & w oodruff Block is a restrained Second Empire

S^e Continuation Shsat 3
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7. Description Continued from Continuation Shast 2 
design with mansard roof and planar wall surfaces due to flush board 
siding. In contrast, the High Victorian Gothic style neighboring 
building has agitated wall surfaces due to constructural polychromy. 
The Strong Manufacturing Company building .erected in 1873 is a large 

3i story gable-roofed structure with the sturdy dignity associated 
wit.i quality utilitarian architecture. Its four-story west wing was 
probably added in the I6o0 f s. Unfortunately, awkward 20th century al­ 
teration of its tower has detracted from its appearance. The Norton 
Block (g&- 60 Main Street) arid the large frame building at 13- 1? Park 
Place W&sT hava~"also had unfortunate 20th century alterations. Both 
of these buildings have apartments above the first-story commercial 
space. The double-gabled Main Street facade of the Norton block is a 
simplification of the composition of 6*+- 6b Main Street. This 'building 
retains its picturesque cupola. The'liiaTrTTacTSe of the building at 
13- ^7 Park Place West is an ordered composition with slightly pro­ 
jecting central padimentad pavilion. This building represents the chang­ 
ing architectural taste at the end of the 19th century'away from agitated 
for-is and eclectic exuberance to formalistic designs with calmer sil- 
houattes. The Gilbert School building of 189^- 95 with its simplicity 
of outline and massing is another example of this trend. With its 
mixing of Romanesque Reivival and Renaissance Revival features, this 
building is typical of late 19th century institutional architecture 
found in many American communities*

Four of the six buildings in the district erected during the 
first decades of the 20th century are.frame houses. Three of the houses 
( V;; .and 5& Park Place East, and 106 North Main Street) are pleasing 
designs with some architectural embellishment* They are typical examples 
of middle-class housing of their period and are harmonious with earlier 
buildings in the district. The other house ( 25 Park Place West) is ty­ 
pical of turn-of-tW3-ceritury working class housing, but its first-story 
* ; ar been remodeled into a grocery store. The most important building 
in the district erected during the early 20th century is the First 
Congregational Church edifice built in 19TO- 1903 naar the north end 
of the'green. This Romanesque Revival buildlnr has an irregular mass 
with corner tower. While this rock-faced stone building may lack 
general coherence it does have considerable visual impact due to its 
massive, plastic form.

Post World War II buildings in the district are generally not 
compatible with the historic scene. Unfortunately a fast food restau* 
ran':. (Dairy Queen) has occupied an important corner by the south and of   
the green since about 1955* In the 1960's another poorly designed

Sae Continuation Sheet *+
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7- Description Continued fron Continuation Sheet 3
commercial building has been erected east of the Dairy Queen building 
further crowding the very important Hall House. The one-story commer­ 
cial building at 21 Park Place West has no embellishments to diminish 
the star* .appearance of its ugly facade. The long., horizontal lines of 
the ;me~story Temple Beth Israel building erected in 1957- 58 are in­ 
compatible in this district of 2 to four-story buildings. A r.as station 
of one-story colonial revival design has been an intrusion in the resi­ 
dential section of the district since the mid 19*40' s. In recent years 
its visual impact has increased due to the erection of large additions*

GPO Ifl92 455
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Since 1799 when the construction of the Green Wood Turnpike stimu­ 
lated its development, the area comprising the Winsted Green Historic 
District has been one of mixed uses containing stores and factories as 
well as residences, churches, schools, and a burying ground. The pic­ 
turesque green, a notable landscaped area with fountains and monuments, 
is the district's focal point. Scattered around it are noteworthy 
examples of 19th century domestic and commercial architecture whose 
quality is a reminder of the prosperity brought to Winsted by its man­ 
ufacturing. Among specific examples deserving mention are the Gideon 
Kail Jr. House ( ^9'->.Maln Street), Greak Revival; the Italianate house 
at 21 Park Place East with original vernacular details.^ the George W. 
Phelps House, Stick Style; and the Baird& Woodruff Block C .70* ?*+ Main 
Street), Second Empire. Unfortunately the high quality of 19th century 
builiinr.s- is no.t found in post 1930 structures in the district.

Prior to the opening of the &reen "Wood Turnpike in 1799, settle­ 
ment in Winsted had focused on Wallen's Kill, east of the Still ^iver 
and where the meetinghouse was located. However, the turnpike which 
followed the present Main Street, was part of the heavily used highway 
between Hartford and Albany arid stimulated development on the level 
area south of it and west of the Still Rivar. Near the crossroads of 
the turnpike and a new six -rod wide road built on the west side of the

River tavern
was

a meetinghouse was built in 1oOO~ 1805 and in 1603 
3rected. (Both buildings no longer stand.)

The open area near the meetinghouse was used as a parade ground* 
i^y 1. :,Q2 the green had taken definite form when this land was purchased 
t!l to be kept forever as a public parade. 111 ^

Gradually a village grew up around the green and Winsted became 
a. prosperous manufacturing* town due to the easily available water power 
fror, the Mad and Still Rivers and to convenient transportation. Nine­ 
teenth century builders saw no need to separate residences from factories 
arid stores therefore from the beginning buildings of varying functions 
ware erected around the green.

Very few early 19th century buildings remain since they have 
been replaced or extensively altered. The gable -ended Federal Period 
hous-2 at ^5 Park Flace West is the oldest building in the district 
retaining architectural Integrity. It was erected in 1816 by Sheldon 
Kenney. the houses at 66 and *K) Park Place East may have been erected 
about the ' same time, but 20th century alterations have reduced their 
significance. Another altered building, but one of considerable local
historical interest, is the small^tvo-story brick commercial structure 
at; c,-2 Main Street. J-t was erected in 1o2o as a scnool ana oe came '

See Continuation aheat 5
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8, Significance
wej 1 known as Hockwell's Academy after be in* purchased by Henry E. 
Rockwell in 1830* A woodcut of the Winsted Green in John W. Barber's 
Cprinecticut Historical,....Collec tions (1336) shows this gable-ended struc­ 
ture with a now missing cupola.

The Greek Revival house at ^9 Main Streit which faces the south 
end of the green is one of the most architecturally distinguished build­ 
ings in Winsted. This imposing house with a two-story colonnade of Doric 
columns extending the full width of its main block was built about I8*f0 
by Gideon Hall, Jr. Kail, a graduate of Litchfield Law School, had 
opened his law office on the Winsted Green about 1830. (The law office 
building is gone.) He subsequently became a Judge.

In 18^5 the green was enlarged when the meetinghouse was moved 
fro-n it. Additional improvements were made in 18^8. In the late 19th 
century a very attractive fountain was added and in 1890__a__ sold!e rj_ s 
monument designedjby Geor^jL-P* Bisjsell ~ " 
placed at its south end.

During the mid-19th century a number of houses In a variety of 
the romantic fStvies popularized by A. J. Downing were erected around 
the green. <J-'he house at 75 Park Place West is a Gothic Revival design, 
while the Italianate style is represented by the houses .at 101 North 
Main Street arid at 20 and 32 Park Place East. The house at 20 Park Place 
East, now used for offices by Northwest Connecticut Community College, 
is a particularly pleasing example of verncular architecture. Its entrance 
and/proch have very original columns resembling elongated vase-shaped 
leg's of furniture. The George W. Phelps House at 53 Park Place West is 
a veil-preserved exuberant example of the Stick Style lacking only a 
proper choice of paint color.

After 1670 most commercial buildings clustered at the southwest 
edpe of the F,reen ware replaced by larger commercial structures. The 
Baird & Woodruff Block n tTO^JZt _-JMn__Stra_rt is a restrained Second 
Empire design with f 1 u s h~b bards I d 1 n g~"IsHcTlpl a i n pilasters. Its neigh­ 
boring High Victorian Gothic Revival style building at ^1^68 Main Street 
is a brick building with constructural polyghromy. Unfortunately the 
lar^e frame corner ouildinf, ( 58 - f-> 0 Ma in S t r e e t) has been covered

with unattractive aluminum r siding, but its cupola suggests former 
charm. The pleasing proportions of the central pavilioned building at 
13- "57 Park Piece Wert are not hidden by its unattractive siding. In 
1873 the Strong Manufacturing Company building was erected on the south­ 
west corner of Rowley Street and Main Street, a site which backed up' 
to :;he Mad River arid on which earlier industrial enterprises had

This bu.'ldin^ with its wast addition is a fine example of
See Continuation She at 6
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Winr;ted Green Historic District, Winsted, CT.

8, Significance Continued from Continuation Sheet 5
late 19th century industrial architecture despite the clumsy 20th cen­ 
tury alteration to the roof of its tower.

In 189^- 95 the Gilbert School building was erected at the 
southeast edge of the green." There had been earlier schools in build­ 
ing;; around the green, but the erection of this building insured that 
the area remained the educational center of the community. The large 
yellow brick building with features of both the Romanesque and Rennais- 
sanca Revival styles first housed a privately endowed, free secondary 
schcol and since 1965, the Northwest Connecticut Community College.

The existing Congregational Church was erected in 1900- 1903 at 
the north end of the green, Although not a building of outstanding 
design quality, the assymmetrically massed Romanesque Revival structure 
is c.n effective visual anchor to this end of the green. Several houses 
were erected along the east side of the green in the early 20th century. 
While not significant architecturally, they harmonize with earlier 
structures.

Unfortunately most buildings erected around the Green since 
World War II are of inferior architectural quality.and are intrusive 
elements. They include a gas station, a soft ice cream store, and a low 
synagogue building which replaced an earlier church building. The 
bandstand erected on the p.reon about 1970 and enlarged In 1976 is not 
an aesthetically appealing structure, but as the site of outdoor per­ 
formances it, contributes to the continuing vitality of the green as 
an important gathering place.

GPO 892 4SS
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10. 3-eographical Data 
Verbal Boundary Description

to the property lines of 79 Park Place West and 95 North Main Street 
(First Congregational Church), and east across Holabird Avenue to the 
property line of 101 North Main Street; on the north by the north 
.proparty lines of 101 and 106 North Main Street; and on the south by 
a line drawn through the center of the Still
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E 18660668 
F 18660668 
G 18660719 
H 18660723 
I 18660640 
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K 18660758 
L 18660782
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